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The critical driver of fertility, CPR is 38% and the
modern contraceptive Prevalence Rate (mCPR) has
gone down to 27% from 29% reported in the
previous PDHS in 2012-13. This is startling that CPR
has decreased for the first time from the previous
survey in 2012-13 in both Pakistan and Punjab
whereas only 19% of women are informed about
all three quality-of service indicators (side effects,
what to do in case of side effects, and other
methods).

Research has also shown that there is a huge gap
between the demand and supply of services which
needs to be addressed, that too in the most
cost-effective manner. The unmet need for Family
Planning Services remains high at 15.8% indicating
that millions of married couples are unable to
receive adequate access to informaton and
services to have the number of children and the
spacing they desire. This is a denial of fundamental
human rights. This gap between their intent and
actual usage of family planning services is
associated with long physical distances, costs and
social  barriers, and in particular with
misperceptions about modern contraceptives
which are more pronounced in the rural areas. All
these access factors affect the poor and
uneducated more seriously.

Health care services during pregnancy and
childbirth as well as after delivery, are important
for the survival and wellbeing of both mother and
infant. Improvements in maternal and child health
are a priority of all developing countries,
something that is also emphasised in the
Sustainable Development Goals call to action that
Pakistan adheres to.

Additionally, there is widespread evidence of
unwanted pregnancies as seen in the high
incidence of unsafe abortions. Alarmingly high
infant and maternal mortality rates, malnutrition
among children and poor education outcomes also
reflect that the society is unwilling or unable to

“When women have more children than they want to
have, there are serious health consequences not just
for those women but also for society as a whole.”

Chairman’s
" Message

The right to decide the number, spacing and timing of children has a
profound impact on the life of a woman. Yet, one out of five married
women in Pakistan who want to avoid pregnancy are unable to access
effective family planning methods to do so.

Pakistan has one of the worst populaion indicators in the region,
mulitplying by the minute, according to the Pakistan Demographic and
Health Survey taken in 2017-18. With the growth rate of 2.4, Pakistan,
currently at 207.8 Million, is expected to double in population by 2050.
This has consequences for all aspects of security of the citizens, be it food
and water to education and health. Meeting an ever-increasing demand
given the resources of the government will prove a relentless battle
against the mushrooming multitude and impact its developmental
targets unless the general public is sensitized to this alarming growth.
Punjab, is Pakisan’s most populous province currently at 110 million and
is expected to rise to 121 million by 2022. A net annual addition of an
estimated 2.2 million people, of which approximately 28 million are
women of reproductive age is estimated to increase to 30 million by
2020. Therefore, Punjab, with its growth rate of 2.13%, will be s big as
Pakistan by the year 2050.

mobilize the resources needed to support the high
fertility rate.

Public policy thus aims to lower the fertility rate in
order to bring about a balance between the
number of children people would want to have
and the number of children actually being born.
This requires two types of interventons. One that
aims to increase awareness of both husbands and
wives on available methods for birth control, be it
for or spacing births while the other complements
the first by making available family planning
services, products and counselling, at the doorstep
or at conveniently accessible locations. Population
programs in the region need the utmost
programmatic and political priority.

Punjab  Population Innovation Fund was
established to roll out these two types of
interventions. It is a non-profit, public sector
company incorporated under Section 42 of the
Companies Ordinance 1984. It aims to reduce
fertility to couples’ desired levels by seeding and
mainstreaming innovative approaches to delivery
of family planning services. The fund spearheads
locally responsive, scalable and sustainable family
planning and reproductive health innitiatives. PPIF
aims to play a critical role to accelerate the fertility
decline by increasing Contraceptive Prevalence in
Punjab, which houses half of the national
population of women with unmet need for
contraception.

The Funds independent Board of Directors
continues to provide strategic guidance and
supervision to the management and ensures that
the company remains on course in achieving its
strategic objectives as set forth in PPIFs Strategic
Framework 2017-2022. Therefore, based on the
above situational synopsis, PPIF presents its
strategic direction as outlined in this years Annual
Director’s Report 2018-2019.

Dr. ljaz Nabi

Chief Executive
Officer’s Review

“PPIF aims to spearhead locally responsive,
scalable and sustainable family planning and

reproductive health initiatives”

| am proud to share this Director’s Report 2018-2019 covering the
many feats achieved in our short-lived existence, as next month will
mark Punjab Population Innovation Funds third year since inception.
| have tremendous gratitude for the continued efforts of our team
members and for our Board’s adaptability and commitment. PPIF has
successfully closed our first round of programs, has launched our
second innovation cycle on male involvement with three new
partners, has co-hosted World Population Day, has held an amateur
youth film competition, has designed a youth focused next program
cycle, is launching the much anticipated BISP voucher scheme and

has welcomed a Youth Ambassador.

The PPIF Board of Directors approved a Strategic Framework
2017-2022 to enable the organization to contribute towards the
achievement of provincial population goals set in the Punjab
Population Policy. The strategic areas that PPIF is focusing on are
Increase Accessibility of Family Planning Services, Reduce Cost
Related Barriers for the non- affording, Strengthen Male Engagement,
Promote Youth Centered Information & Services, and Social &

Behavior Change Communication.

Anchoring our initiatives in the Strategic
Framework 2017-2022 objectives of the Board,
PPIF in collaboration with the Population Welfare
Department (PWD) and United Nations Population
Fund (UNFPA) hosted the World Population Day
celebrations emphasizing the need to use
edutainment to help engage young people as
agents of change to challenge prejudices and help
mitigate myths surrounding the uses of family
planning. PPIF Youth Ambassador Ms Amna llyas
will use her social media presecence and fan
following to help demystify family planning as a
female domain advocating for youth centric
communication. Strenghtening the strategic
objective to promote youth centered information
and services.

During the year PPIF has successfully developed
partnerships with the government, non-profits
and academia to spearhead socially relevant and
culturally adaptable service delivery solutions
using contemporary methodologies. PPIF has
aimed to build lasting affiliations yielding long
term  results strengthening access to
familyplanning services and completed two pilot
projects from its first program cycle with Akhter
Hameed Khan Resource Center (AHKRC) and
Health and Nutrition Development Society
(HANDS) that meet the organizations strategic
objectives.

Family planning programs in Pakistan have often
been directed at women with very few
interventions focused on men to increase the
contraceptive prevalence rate. PPIF, in its second
cycle has designed and launched an innovative
program specifically to engage and improve the
accessibility for men.

Three projects were selected under the
program, ‘Kar Buland’, by DoctHers in Rahim Yar
Khan, ‘Connect4FP’ by International Rescue
Committee in Multan and ‘Mil kar Faisla,
Khushali ka Waseela,” our partner Greenstar
Social Marketing in Faisalabad and Bahawalpur.

The Punjab Population Innovation Fund (PPIF),
Benazir Income Support Programme (BISP), and
the Population Council (PC) signed an MoU on
January 4, 2019 at the BISP Secretariat,
Islamabad and further held a launch ceremony
in June. The collaboration with would provide
the rare opportunity of an integrated social
development program for enhanced service
provision with the benefit of poverty alleviation
for female BISP beneficiaries from the most
underprivileged strata of society in Rahim Yar
Khan.

A key strategic objective for PPIF is to focus on
reducing cost related barriers, hence PPIF
designed a voucher scheme aimed at enabling
poor women to have access to family planning
services by reducing financial barriers and
incentvizing private service providers in their
vicinity to offer family planning services through
reimbursement against redeemed voucher
Monitoring and learning outcomes are used to
improve the design of fund management at PPIF.
We have conducted an extensive review of our
processes to identify critical issues that have
slowed the progress and resulted in sub-optimal
results. Therefore, we continue to focus on
improving the way we innovate, in our
programme design, in our monitoring and
evaluation, and with our partners. PPIF has
created a niche for itself by investing in projects
that are financially viable, sustainable beyond
the duration of funding and are rigorously
monitored to ensure the validity of the results,
an approach that is unprecedented in the
context of family planning. The 2018-2019
Director’s report is proof of our efforts in
ensuring our monitoring and evaluation
practices support our core programmatic
strategies bringing accountabilty to the family
planning sector.

Jawad A. Qureshi




DIRECTORS’
REPORT
30 JUNE 2019

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, we are pleased to present PPIF’'s operational
performance together with the Audited Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report for the year ended
30th June 2019.

Introduction to PPIF

PPIF is a section 42 non-profit, public sector company with an independent Board of Directors. The PPIF
envisions to be a market maker with the immediate goal of accelerating a rise in contraceptive prevalence
and reduction in unmet need for family planning services to meet targets and country level commitments
highlighted in FP2020, Sustainable Development Goals 2030 and Punjab Population Policy Goals. Its
fundamental role is to test the impact of innovations that spark off a significant increase in consumer
market for family planning through greater determination and information availability, enhanced provider
motivation, and wider provision of quality family planning services. Recognizing the need for increasing
both acceptability and availability simultaneously, the Fund supports interventions in areas of high
poverty and high unmet need for family planning.

Rationale of PPIF

¢ Uncovered Areas

PPIF enabled interventions would play a critical role to accelerate fertility decline, by increasing private
sector involvement in areas that are underserved by the public sector (Family Welfare Centers & Lady
Health Workers serve less than < 13% of Married Women of Reproductive Age and 50% of public health
facilities are not providing a full range of contraceptive methods). The direct goal of all interventions will
be to increase access to services, especially in the underserved urban and rural areas, through
innovative approaches in communication and service delivery.

e Unmet Need
For a province which houses half of the national population of women with unmet need for
contraception, the Punjab Population Innovation Fund is a route for testing out innovative models for
serving the unmet need of both men and women (18% Unmet need i.e. 3 Million women), both Never
users and Ever users, as well as users of traditional methods (2 Million women) to convert them into
modern contraceptive users, with a special emphasis on the poor.

e Value for Money

PPIF projects provide a greater value for money as compared to the Public sector.




Performance during the year

2018-19 over programs

Strategic Focus & Innovations:

1. INCREASE ACCESSIBILITY OF FAMILY PLANNING SERVICES: Expanding access to family planning (FP)
at the community level is a priority strategy for accelerating progress towards achieving Millennium
Development Goals (MDGs) especially universal access to reproductive health (RH), including FP
services. However, the achievement of universal access to FP and RH services remains a major
challenge when 40% of Punjab is uncovered by Lady Health Worker (LHW) and merely 10% of the
women given information on family planning during a postnatal checkup . PPIF aims to improve
accessibility by developing new formal partnerships with public and private providers and invest in
bringing family planning services to where people live and work, through door- step delivery models
such as social franchising and marketing of private providers, social entrepreneurship and mobile
services to improve the accessibility for family planning services. It will implement interventions which
provide a wide range of FP services through an aggregated network of pharmacies/drug shops and
private health service providers and explore the opportunity of integrating with other development
programs specifically immunization, post-partum healthcare services.

Interventions:

The first program cycle piloted two interventions that tested the doorstep delivery model that enables
the community-based women to have an additional income source by selling household items and
replenishing short term contraceptives along with family planning advisory services at their doorsteps;
while referring clients for family planning services to a quality assured network of private/public health
practitioners. Health and Nutrition Development Society (HANDS) implemented the model in non-LHW
covered 15UCs of district Muzaffargarh whereas Akhter Hameed Khan Resource Center (AHKRC) in
partnership with NUST implemented the project in 4 UCs in peri-urban slums of Rawalpindi. A Video
Library on FP topics was also developed by HANDS and readily made available to both the smart and
regular phone users to be shown by the community workers. AKHRC employed a Positive Deviance
Inquiry and Cognitive Behavior Therapy model developed by NUST that addressed family planning myths
and misconceptions as well as improved the uptake of long-term contraceptive methods in the area.

Through interventions in the first program cycle, 80,000 Married Women of Reproductive Age were
reached, 44,866 were served and 17,000 Additional new users were generated during 18 months. On
average, there has been more than 30% uptake of long-term methods among additional new users in
the interventions. 25 private providers and almost 200 community mobilizers (women) were trained to
provide family planning services. These interventions foresee a 15% increase in Contraceptive
Prevalence Rate (CPR) however, the exact figures can be shared after the end line evaluation of the
interventions that is due to be completed by end of September 2019. PPIF is making efforts to mobilize
funds to scale up the successful intervention in the 40% uncovered area in Punjab.

2. REDUCE COST RELATED BARRIERS: Globally, fertility is higher among poor, rural, and uneducated
women than among their well- off, urban, and educated counterparts, although this disparity is much
smaller in countries with strong family planning

programs. Similarly, in Pakistan, the Total Fertility Rate for the lowest and highest wealth quintile in
Pakistan is 4.9 and 2.8 respectively. However, PPIF aims to ensure that family planning services are
accessible especially for the poor and the marginalized through interventions that focus on clients’
financial decision-making for e.g. vouchers that can be redeemed at trained private health service
providers and/or family planning included in health insurance. The opportunity of integrating with
poverty alleviation and other social development programs for enhanced service provision while also
reinforcing the message that family planning can be an effective approach contributing to broad
development goals of poverty reduction will also be explored.

Interventions:

PPIF, Population Council and BISP have collaborated to enable female BISP beneficiaries from the most
underprivileged segments of the society to avail family planning services ensuring their rights of
avoiding mistimed pregnancies and births and improving maternal and child health outcomes in their
communities. The project will mitigate cost and information related barriers by financing the uptake of
family planning services for around 20,000 BISP beneficiaries that are married women of reproductive
age (MWRAs 15-49) and create community-based information channels for an additional 60,000 BISP
beneficiaries through BISP Beneficiaries Committee’s (BBC)/ BISP Mother Ambassadors (MAs), social
mobilizers and LHWs. The intervention will be based in all four Tehsils of Rahim Yar Khan for a duration
of 18 months. A quality assured network of upto 60 private health service providers as well as public
sector will be developed. The intervention will have a digitized voucher management system based on
a mobile application for verification and disbursement of funds to beneficiaries and providers. The
transportation costs to the nearest health facilities will also be reimbursed to the BISP beneficiaries for
efficient improved access to service. With the presence of more than 2 Million BISP beneficiaries in
Punjab, there is immense opportunity to scale the intervention once the pilot is successfully tested.

3. STRENGTHEN MALE ENGAGEMENT: Despite husbands predominantly being the decision makers of
the household and their understanding of family planning significantly affecting women’s use of
contraception, most family planning programs in Pakistan are still largely directed at women with
limited opportunities for men to acquire information, counselling, and services. With more than 50% of
the couples having a disagreement on family size and 30% men wanting more children than women
require for not only engaging men individually but also as couples. PPIF aims to engage men where they
live, work and recreate and enhance couple communication. To achieve that, PPIF designed and
launched a program specifically to improve the accessibility for men. Three projects have been selected
under the program that are collectively expected to reach more than 140,000 MWRA and generate
18,500 additional family planning users.

LHV Providing Family Planning Services

Reaching Couples at First Point of Contact




Male Engagement Interventions:

dectHERS*

PPIF will be implementing three projects specifically focusing on male engagement. The
first one, being implemented by DoctHers, will reach men and women working in more
than 40 factories/workplaces of Unilever and Reckitt Benckiser as well as its surrounding
communities to increase accessibility to FP information and consultation via an online
Community Health Worker (CHW)-assisted telemedicine platform
(HD-video-consultation). Family planning is being added to the employee’s health
insurance system and a low-cost health insurance package will be introduced in the
surrounding communities. The intervention is being implemented in districts of Lahore,
RY Khan, Muzaffargarh, Multan, Bahawalpur, Gujranwala, Faisalabad and Rawalpindi. The
project is expected to reach more than 40,000 MWRAs, generate 6000 Additional Family
Planning Users and offer wide range of quality FP services through 40 service providers.
40% of MAWRAs availing services are expected to choose long term FP methods.

The second one, being implemented by International Rescue Committee, will offer a
comprehensive client-centered FP package including FP counselling, treatment/
management and referrals through a trained network of pharmacies/medical stores,
private providers (Male & Female GPs) and public providers. Trained Family Planning
Champions will conduct community mobilization and a performance-based
remuneration will also be provided to incentivize the mobilization activities. Viamo, as
technical partner, will provide high-tech and low-cost mobile solution linking clients with
service providers in hard to reach communities and for data collection. The intervention
will be carried out in 9 Union Councils of district Multan and is expected to reach more
than 54,000 MWRAs, generate 7300 Additional Family Planning Users and offer wide
range of quality FP services through 88 service providers. 30% of MAWRAs availing
services are expected to choose long term FP methods.

The third one, being implemented by Greenstar Social Marketing, will reach men and
couples at first point-of-contact services. It will develop a network of Male General
Practitioners providing FP services at polyclinics (female provider assisted), Female
Health Providers, Pharmacies, Hakims and Homeopaths. The project will involve
previously inactive Male Service Providers, Hakims and Homeopaths in the family
planning ecosystem. It will also establish male friendly spaces at pharmacies for the
provision of FP counselling. The health clinics will also observe fixed day FP services to
further accelerate the promotion of family planning services. The intervention will be
carried out in 6 Union Councils of district Bahawalpur and three Union Councils of
district Faisalabad. The project is expected to reach more than 47,000 MWRAs, generate
5200 Additional Family Planning Users and offer wide range of quality FP services
through 175 service providers. 30% of MAWRAS availing services are expected to choose
long term FP methods.

4. PROMOTE YOUTH-CENTERED INFORMATION & SERVICES: Youth have not been the focus of
reproductive health information and communication campaigns in Pakistan. Young people who are able
to exercise their sexual rights, including by contributing to social cohesion and public health, accessing
services, have the potential to be agents of change by challenging prejudices and contributing to social
cohesion and public health. Low levels of information combined with an early age of marriage and high
unmet need of 18% among married women of reproductive age (15 to 19 years) in Pakistan has led to
a high incidence of pregnancy in this age group. PPIF is committed to working with young people by
expanding access to quality information through increased channels, integration with education
programs, knowledge generation on changing youth needs and most importantly creating structures to
ensure meaningful and sustainable youth engagement on reproductive health and family planning at all
levels. PPIF has recently also launched a Call for Abstracts for successful youth specific interventions in
the country which will contribute in developing the upcoming call for youth centered interventions.

5. ADDRESS FAMILY PLANNING BARRIERS THROUGH SOCIAL & BEHAVIOUR CHANGE
COMMUNICATION (SBCC): Only less than 15% of men and women are ever exposed to main stream
media messages for importance of education, early marriages and reduction in maternal and child
deaths in relation to family planning. Cultural taboos, stigmatized nomenclature, myths and
misconceptions play a critical role in shaping attitudes and behaviours. The Landscape study conducted
by Population Council also shows that 38 percent of urban pharmacies, 22 percent of rural pharmacies
in Lahore were not selling contraceptives because it was perceived as impermissible in Islam. PPIF not
only aims to will design programs with effective SBCC components, paying particular attention to
important demographic variables to ensure the appropriateness of SBCC messages but also strengthen
the knowledge base through multiple information channels by identifying and demystifying FP
misconceptions, addressing social barriers and increasing channels of access to correct information at
all levels for the youth, men and women. PPIF will further advocate by targeting key institutions,
engaging parliamentarians and community and religious networks.

Interventions:

PPIF has launched a call for proposals focusing on Improving Family planning knowledge, positive
attitudes and practice through systematic and evidence-based Social and Behavior Change
Communication Interventions especially targeted towards men. The call encourages intervention that
improve informed choice by developing information pathways and create gender equitable attitudes
that increase joint decision making among couples. Proposals have been received and are in the
evaluation process. The focus of the proposals received includes social and mass media engagement,
telefilm production, mobile solutions, interactive activities like street theatres among other very
interesting ideas. PPIF is also making efforts to mobilize resources in order to support high scale
interventions as part of this cycle.




Monitoring and Evaluation

The PPIF has put into effect an effective monitoring and evaluation regime to ensure that at the design
phase, only those projects that adhere to the objectives defined in the strategic framework are selected
and the projects being implemented in the field adhere strictly to the defined outputs and outcomes
within the prescribed period.

A Monitoring and Evaluation Framework has been developed which provides guidelines for
implementation of the Monitoring regime envisioned by the Board of Directors and provides checks to
maintain the validity and veracity of the data collected from the field.

The PPIF funded projects undergo a three-tiered monitoring process:
o The project partners designing and implementing their own monitoring plans;
o Process monitoring by third party evaluators engaged by the PPIF; and
o Indicator tracking and quarterly reviews by the PPIF team.

The following proposed activities corresponding to the phases of the project implementation cycle will be
conducted.

e Baseline evaluation: to be conducted prior to active implementation of the project

e Regular process monitoring: during the implementation period starting with the first monthly

progress tracking indicator report

e Data collection and analysis to identify trends: during the implementation period

e Project evaluation: at the culmination of project life end of the project

e Program Evaluation over two to three years to assess incremental impact

Baseline Surveys

Baseline surveys were conducted in Rawalpindi and Muzaffargarh in the intervention areas for the PPIF
projects. The surveys were conducted as part of the PPIF mechanism for capturing evidence of the
effectiveness of the proposed interventions. In the PPIF’s testing model the focus is not just on testing the
efficacy of services, but also on testing throughout the business model as well as demand generation and
community mobilization activities.

Projects closed and endline survey is under-process. The aims of surveys to gage to what extent and the
impact of the overall projects on family planning behaviours and outcomes for men, women and
vulnerable population in the targeted area. Identify the effectiveness of project components and doorstep
counselling services.

At baseline it was observed that majority of MWRAs (80%) are illiterate women, with 83% having no
personal income while couples have around six to seven children on average. Around 67% are aware of at
least one contraceptive method although only 37.2% of MWRAs surveyed had ever used contraceptive
methods while only 27.8% were using any method at the time of survey. Of those not currently using FP
methods, 37.2% expressed the intention and need for contraceptive use for limiting or spacing births.
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Third Party Monitors

Ernest and Young were hired for conducting the process monitoring of the project being implemented in
Muzaffargarh and Rawalpindi through a competitive bidding process.

Third party evaluation reports are received at the end of every quarter and are utilized for the purpose of
verification of the progress report shared by the contract partners. A schedule of partner activities is
shared with the third-party monitors to facilitate them in carrying out field monitoring activities.

Quality assurance is also a part of the monitoring process and tools like SBMR are being utilized to ensure
the quality of care being received by the clients under the projects implemented.

Hiring process for third party monitoring firm is under for BISP and cycle 2.1. For BISP beneficiary payment
a mobile application was developed by the Population Council where the data of beneficiaries will be
populated. Upon seeking the service at Point-of-service the beneficiary will be biometrically verified and
within a week beneficiary will receive amount through disbursement agency. For payment to the private
service providers, Third Party Monitoring firm will verify 30% sample of clients generated through private
providers. Payment will be disbursed monthly upon 100% validation of the 30% sample of clients.

Corporate Governance

PPIF, being a public sector enterprise, operates under the framework enshrined in the Public Sector
Companies (Corporate Government) Rules, 2013.

Overall superintendence of the Company vests with the Board of Directors which are

accountable to the Regulatory Authorities for good corporate governance while the management is
responsible for day to day operations, implementation of policies as envisaged in the Companies Act, 2017
and the Corporate Governance Rules.

Internal Audit Function

Internal audit function serves as an effective appraisal of internal controls which ensure that methods and
measures are in place to safeguard the assets, monitoring compliance with the best practices of Corporate
Governance, check the accuracy and reliability of accounting data and encourage adherence to prescribed
rules and policies.

In line with this function, PPIF has an independent Internal Audit Company. The scope and role of the
Internal Auditor, as defined in the Internal Audit Charter, has been duly approved by the Board of
Directors. The role corresponds to the responsibilities envisaged for the Internal Auditor under the Public
Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013. Internal Auditor functionally reports directly to
the Audit Committee of the Board.




Composition of the Board

The status of each director on the Board, whether non-executive, executive or independent and ex-officio
has been disclosed in this report in accordance with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)
Rules, 2013. The Board members are nominated by the Government of the Punjab. The composition of the
Board is as follows:
a) Five (05) Directors from amongst the Government Departments in Ex-officio capacity, name of the
Government Departments and ex-officio members are as follow:
i. Secretary Finance Department;
ii. Secretary Population Welfare Department;
iii. Secretary Primary & Secondary HealthCare Department;
iv. Secretary Specialized HealthCare and Medical Education Department; &
v. Member HNP, P&D Board;
b) Eight (08) Directors as independent members;

Casual Vacancies on the Board

Four (4) casual vacancies occurred during 2018-19 on the board due to the resignation.

Board Committees

In line with the requirements of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013, the
Board has the following six committees:

1. Audit & Finance Committee;

2. Human Resource Committee;

3. Program Design and Evaluation Committee;

4. Nomination Committee;

5. Risk Management and Investigation Committee;

6. IT Steering Committee;

Members of Audit and Finance Committee:
I. Dr. Naved Hamid — Independent Director — Chair Audit Committee;
Il. Secretary Finance — Ex-officio member — Member Audit Committee;
lll. Secretary Primary & Secondary HealthCare Department — Ex-officio member — Member Audit
Committee.

During the year 2018-19, following sub-committee meetings of the PPIF board were held:

SNeurri\iLer Sub-Committee Meetings of the PPIF Board Date
1 2" Audit & Finance Committee Meeting December 28, 2018
2 3" Audit & Finance Committee Meeting April 10, 2019
3 4™ Audit & Finance Committee Meeting June 20, 2019
4 3® Human Resource Committee Meeting June 03, 2019
5 6" Program Design & Evaluation Committee Meeting | March 26, 2019
6 7" Program Design & Evaluation Committee Meeting May 21, 2019

Compliance Statement

Under section 236 of the Ordinance, specific statements to comply with the requirements of the Public
Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 are as follows:
a) The Board has complied with the relevant principles of the Corporate Governance and has
identified the rules that have not been complied with;
b) The Financial statements, prepared by the Management of the Company, present its state of
affairs fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in funds and reserves;
c) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;
d) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of Financial
Statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement;
e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored; and
f) The appointment of the Chairman and other members of the Board and the terms of their
appointment along with the remuneration policy adopted are in the best interests of the Public
Sector Company as well as in line with the best practices;

During the year under review, no salary, fees, benefits and other performance-related incentives have
been paid to any Director / member of the Punjab Population Innovation Fund. All board members /
directors including ex-officio members are on pro-bono status.

During the year under review, timely availability of funds was the most significant issue, for FY 2018-19,
under approved ADP Rs 213 million were allocated and then released to PPIF on March 19, 2019. Due to
this delay majority of approved calls could not be procured and finalized during 2018-19.

During the financial year, the company received Rs 213 million from the Government of the Punjab to
meet its expenses relating to the program and non-program activities. All costs related to the program
activities have been classified and accounted for as program related costs. Costs related to non-program
activities include management cost, operating and capital expenditure.

Key Achievements during 2018-19

Program cycle 1 was piloted in Muzaffargarh and Rawalpindi and following outcomes were achieved:

i. Noor Dukaans developed as points of information and short-term Family Planning Services and
household items, 50 Dukaans sustained as sources of economic and social empowerment for
women.

ii. Tested model of Noor Health Houses as mediums of information and long acting services provision
by weekly visits of LHVs and 80,000 couples were sensitized.

iii. >12% Increase in CPR in intervention area and upto 30% long term contraception;

iv. FP messaging and data monitoring through mobile App.




. Key Operating and Financial Data 2017-2022

buni . . KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR EXPECTED OUTCOMES
unjab Population Innovation Fund

Key Operating and Financial Data for the last Two (2) Years 100,000 additional new users. 400,000 couples provided with FP services.
1.4 million quality FP services provided. 5 million population reached with FP messages.
Financial Data as per audited accounts (Amount in Rupee) 3000 more providers (by type) offering wide | 10%  decrease in  discontinuation  of
range of quality FP services. contraceptive use in the intervention area.
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 20% FP knowledge increased in intervention | 10% increase in CPR in intervention area.
area.
Fixed Assets 21,399,515 24,175,276 Commitment solicited for FP policy and practice
improvements.
Long term Security deposit — Office Rent 1,595,716 1,545,716
Currently, unapproved gratuity scheme is being observed for the employees of the Punjab Population
Prepayments including Office Rent 2,456,587 4,389,466 Innovation Fund. Internal auditor has recommended that approved gratuity scheme should be
introduced for PPIF employees, their recommendation shall be placed before audit & finance
Cash and bank balance 159,483,914 | 69,806,045 committee and then to the Board for their approval on AFC recommendation.
Total Assets 184,935,732 99,916,503 During the year under reV|e\A'/ following two (02) meetings of the Board of Directors were held and the
attendance of each Director is as under:
Deferred Grant 158,457,308 85,773,860
Serial Board Meeting Date
Deferred Liability 6,811,453 4,345,000 Tl
1 9t Board Meeting November 02, 2018
General Fund Payable 1,325,798 | = --——-- 5 10 Board Meeting April 11, 2019
Trade and other payables 18,341,173 9,797,643
Name of Directors 32, @ e
Total Funds and Liabilities 184,935,732 99,916,503 Attended
1. Dr. ljaz Nabi— (Chairman Board) 2
2. Dr. Naved Hamid- (Chair Audit & Finance Committee) 2
4. Dr. Yasmeen Qazi — (Chair Program Design and Evaluation Committee) 0
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 5. Ex-officio Member HNP P&D Board 1
6. Ex-officio - Specialized HealthCare and Medical Education Department) 2
Program Expenses 92,412,625 42,356,880 7. Ex-officio - Primary & Secondary HealthCare Department) 1
Operational Expenses 47,066,733 60,990,741 & [Zeeiiide - Anznes DEperimemn: 1
9. Ex-officio - Population Welfare Department) 2
Total Expenses 139,479,358 | 103,347,621 10. Mr. Jawad Ahmed Qureshi (CEO PPIF) 2
Surplus of Income over Expenses - - Note:
Following independent board member resigned during the year 2018-19:

1. Mr. Salim Ullah Ghauri resigned on May 22, 2019;
Following are the key performance indicators of the Punjab Population Innovation Fund relating to its

social objectives which significantly reflect the work and impact of the PPIF: Following Ex-officio members transferred during the year 2018-19:
1. Madam Bushara Aman - Secretary Population Welfare Department;

2. Capt. Retd. Saqib Zafar - Secretary Primary and Secondary Healthcare Department;

o




AUDITORS

Quality of financial reporting continues to be of prime concern to the stakeholders-sponsors, Board of
Directors and Management. Therefore, the company will continue to exercise due diligence and care in
the selection of Auditor as it had done in the past.

External Auditor — M/S Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman,
Chartered Accountants:

a) Mr. Imran Afzal — Deputy Partner;

b) Mr. Naeem Sarwar — Senior Manager;

According to rule 23 of PSC (CG) Rules, 2013;
Every Public Sector Company shall ensure that its annual accounts are audited by external auditors, as
envisaged under section 252 of the ordinance.

M/S Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, served as external auditor of Punjab
Population Innovation Fund for consecutive 03 years i.e. 2016-17, 2017-18 & 2018-19.

Sub rule 6 of rule 23 of PSC (CG) Rules, 2013 states that; Every Public Sector Company in the Financial
Sector shall change its external auditor every five years. Financial Sector, for this purpose, means banks,
non-banking finance companies, mutual funds, modarabas, takaful companies and insurance companies.
Every Public Sector Company other than those in the Financial Sector shall, at a minimum, rotate the
engagement partner after every five years.

In light of above rule, M/S Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, has provided their
consent on new fee to act as an external auditor of Punjab Population Innovation Fund for the Financial
Year ending June 30th 2020.

Sub rule 7 of rule 21 of PSC (CG) Rules, 2013 narrates that; The audit committee shall be responsible for
managing the relationship of Public Sector Company with the external auditors. In managing the Public
Sector Company’s relationship with the external auditors on behalf of the board, the audit committee’s
responsibilities include:

e Suggesting the appointment of the external auditor to the Board, the audit fee, and any question
of resignation or dismissal;

Rule 22 of PSC (CG) Rules, 2013 states that; There shall an internal audit function in every Public Sector
Company. The Chief Internal Auditor, who is the head of the internal audit function in the Public Sector
Company, shall be accountable to the audit committee and have unrestricted access to the audit
committee.

In the absence of Chief Internal Auditor, PPIF has appointed M/S BDO Ebrahim & CO, Chartered Accountant
as internal auditor.

A

Internal Auditor — M/S BDO Ebrahim & Co,
Chartered Accountants:

a) Mr. Muhammad Imran— Partner;

b) Mr. Faisal Iftikhar — Senior Auditor Associate;

Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary

Q,% .

a
Abdul Qayyum

Annual General Meeting

For the period 2017-18, 2nd Annual General Meeting of Punjab Population Innovation Fund is pending
wherein the following agenda shall be resolved:

a) The Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, together with
Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon be and the same are hereby received, considered
and adopted; &

b) The retiring auditor M/S Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants be and hereby
re-appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2018 and to hold
office from the conclusion of this meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
on a remuneration fixed by the Board of Directors;

3rd Annual General Meeting of Punjab Population Innovation Fund was due on October 28, 2019, which
could not convene due to non-finalization of audited accounts for the financial year 2018-19. The
following agenda shall be resolved during 3rd Annual General Meeting:

a) The Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, together with
Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon be and the same are hereby received, considered
and adopted;

b) Appointment of External Auditor for Punjab Population Innovation Fund for future years.

Anticipated Donor Funding

The PPIF projects are funded by the Government of the Punjab as the latter continues to allocate money
to the company through the provincial Annual Development Plan.

The Strategic Framework approved by the Board of Directors allows for reaching out to traditional donors
as well as to underutilized resources such as corporate philanthropy for generating resources, considering
the scale of the population problem in the province.

Chief Executive Officer

) g
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L
Jawad A. Qureshi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Punjab Population Innovation Fund [A Company setup under section 42
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed)]

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Punjab Population Innovation Fund - A Company
setup under section 42 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 [repealed] (the Company), which comprse
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the income and expenditure statement and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes 1o the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audir.

In our opinion and to the best of our informaton and according to the explanatons given to us, the
staternent of finandial posidon, income and expenditure statement and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in funds and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the surplus and other
comprehensive income, the changes in funds and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatonal Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for the
it of the Finandal Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Erbics for Professional Asconntants as adopted
by the Insttate of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

4

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

@ GrantThomton
An instinet kor growth
Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 4.2 of the financial statements, which states that title of two vehicles transferred
to the company during the year is still in the name of Government of Punjab. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors'
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be matedally misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from matedial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with I5As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materdal if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identfy and assess the dsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ene resulting from
error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal contrel,

L/




Aa insinct fo ot PUNJAB POPULATION INNOVATION FUND
#: ‘Obido. s admistnding, o irtamal conal, Sasior 1o e, SCKE in, GRACT 15 oy D (A Company set up under section 42 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 - now
procedures that are appropoate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an .
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. C{Jmpa nies ACL 201 T)

» Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting Statement of Financial Position
estimates and related disclosures made by management. As at J une 30, 2019

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 2018
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

Rupaes

concern. If we conclude that a marerial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenton in Assets
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures Non-current assets
arc inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained Property, plant and equipment + 19,690,922 23,051,683
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Intangible assets 5 1,708,593 1123503
Company to cease to continue as a going concern, Long temn sscurity deposit B 1,595,716 1545716
s  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the o] RN AT Sa——- 2,008,251 25,120,252
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and Current assets
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. Prepayments 7 862,058 307501
: . . . . K 3,956,958
We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing Advances 8 1 :::.52: 126,007
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we oot refundetiy i
identify during our audit. Cash and bank balances 9 159,483,914 69,806,045
Total current assels 161,940,501 74,195,511
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements Total asset 184.835.732 99.916.503
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: Funds and liabilias
: : Funds
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 Ganasal und 1.325.798 )
(XIX of 2017); =
Total funds 1,325,798 -
b) the statement of financial position, the income and expenditure statement and other comprehensive Liabilities

income, the statement of changes in funds and the statement of cash flows together with the notes

thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in DIOR/GUIVRR Bai e

: 5 i 85,773,860
agreement with the books of account and retuns; Deferred g.ra.jls STl s i b s
Deferred liability 1 6,811,453 4,345,000
c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the Total non current labilities 165,268,761 90,118,860
purpose of the Company’s business; and Curresit llabillies
d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980) TS citr pijebies = L L L o
Tetal eurrent liabilites 18,341,173 9,797,643
Total funds and labilities 184,935,732 99,916,503
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Imran Afzal.
Contingencies and commitments 13

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial stalemenis.
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Date: January 29, 2020
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PUNJAB POPULATION INNOVATION FUND PUNJAB POPULATION INNOVATION FUND

(A Company set up under section 42 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 - now (A Company set up under section 42 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984) - now
Compantes Act, 2017) Companies Act, 2017
Income and Expenditure Statement and Other Comprehensive Income Statement of Changes in Funds
1 - { N
For the year ended June 30, 2019 For the year ended June 30, 2019
General
Fund
Grants income 10 143,716,552 103,347,621 Rs.
Program expenses 14 (95,039,794) (42,356,880) Opening balance as on June 30, 2017
Administration expenses Total comprehensive income for the year
Salanes and other benefits (32,694,113) (39,691,161)
Others 15 (13,060,682) (21,295,779) Balance as at June 30, 2018
(45,754,795) (60,986,940)
Other expenses 16 (2,915,424) . Total comprehensive income for the year 1,325,798
Bank charges (6,539) (3.801) Balance as at June 30, 2019 1,325,798
Su rpl.l..l.:.i.l-aium tax =
Taxation a7 Tg;;za:mmad nofas 1 to 23 form an integral part of these fnancial statemeants.
Net surplus after tax B
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to income & expenditure
Remeasurement gain on post retirement benefit plan 1,325,798
Iterns that may be reclassified subsequently te income & expenditure .
Total comprehensive income for year 1,325,788
The annexed noles 1 lo 23 form an inlegral part of these financial stalements.
4l
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PUNJAE POPULATION INNOVATION FUND

PUNJAB POPULATION INNOVATION FUND

(A Company set up under section 42 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984) - now

Companies Act, 2017
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended June 30, 2019

(A Company set up under section 42 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 - now
Companies Act, 2017)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

20189

Rupees

Net surplus for the year - -
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation 4,182,923 3,564,429
Bank charges 6,539 381
Loss on disposal of assels 2915424 -
Provision for gratuity 5,223,021 4,345,000
12,327,907 7,913,230
Het cash flows before working capital changes 12,327,907 7,913,230
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
{Increase) / cecrease in prepayments (554,558) 230,832
Decrease / (Increase) in advances 2ABT 437 (3,955,958)
Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 8,543,630 8,398,071
Cash generated from operalions 22,804,216 12,587,175
Increasal (dacreasae) in grants during the year - net 72,973,654 (103,347 621)
Tax paid - (126,007)
Graluity paid (1,430,770} .
Met cash (used in} / from operating activities 94,347,100 (50,886,453)
Gash flows from investing activities
Purchass of fixed assets during the year (4,466 ,442) (23,718,895)
Incraase in long term deposits (50,000) (270,716)
Addibons in intangible assels {146,250) -
Het cash used in investing activities (4,662,692) (23,289,611)
Cash flows from financing activities
Bank charges paid (8,539) {3.801)
Het cash used in financing activities (6,539) {3,801)
' 1i in h equiva 89,677,869 [114,B79,865)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 69,806,045 184,585,910
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ] 159,483,914 69,806,045

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financia! stalements.

L

o~
/
==
= , - " Vy
;fd_’,,.af 1._.--"‘]1_,

CHIEF EXECUTIVE ®FFICER

m&ﬂ \ Eeniny

DIRECTOR

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

14

12

1.3

Punjab Population Inmovation Fund (PPIF) is incorporated in Pakistan under Section 42 of the repealed Companies
Oredinance, 1984 { now Companies Act, 2017) on October 04, 2016 as a public company Emited by guarantee having
registered office at 125, Abu Bakar Block, Garden Town, Lahore.

‘The principal object of the Company is o support the Gevernment of the Punjab in improving the quality of life of
the people of the Punjab, partcularly the vulnerable and margialized areas and sections of the population, by assisting
service delivery organization in the public, non-governmental and private sectors 1o improve access, and the quality of
family planning services in Punjab.

Druring the year, the Chicf Minister of Punjab Committee constituted for review of issues of public sector companies
in Punjab has decided 1o continue operations of the company along with other 30 public sector companies beng
managed by the Punjab Government.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

24

Staterment of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable m
Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued
by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board and Accounting Standard for Mot for Profit Organizations issued by
ICAP as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companics Act,
2017, In cuses where requirements differ, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 shall
proevail

Standards, amendments or inferpretations that became effective during the year

There are cermain amendmenis and interpretations to approved accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2018, However, these do not have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting and, therefore, have not been detailed in these financial
statemcnts.

In addition to the above, the following two new standacds have become applicable on the Company w.e.f July 1, 2018

IFRS 9 'Fmancial mstrements’ — This standard replaces the provisions of [AS 39 thar relate 1o the secognition,
Classification and measurement of fnancial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of fnancial assets and hedge accounting, [t also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces LAS
39 incurred loss impairment model. On July 1, 2018 (the date of initial application of IFRS 9), the Company's
management has asscssed which business models apply to the financial assets held by the Company and has classified
its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 catcgorics.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrument’ in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Govemment, the
requircments contained in “IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) with respect to application of Expected Credit Losses are
deffered till July 2021 a% a result of aotfication iswed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ — This standard introduces a single five-step model for revenue
recognition with a comprchensive framework based on core principle that an entity should recopnise revenue
representing the transfer of promised goods or services under separate performance obligatons under the contract 1o
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. IFRS 15 replaces provious revenue standards: LAS 18 Revenue, 1AS 11 Construction Contracts, and
related interpretations on the revenue recognition.

The changes kid down by these stindards do not have any significant impact on these financial statements of the
Company. However, related changes to the accounting policies and disclosures have been made in these financial
statements.

7.4




PUNJAB POPULATION INNOVATION FUND PUNJAB POPULATION INNOVATION FUND

(A Company set up under section 42 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 - now (A Company set up under section 42 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 - now
Companies Act, 2017) Companies Act, 2017)

Notes to the financial statements Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended June 30, 2019 For the year ended June 30, 2019

23  Standards and interpretations to the published standard that are relevant but not yet effective 3.6 Taxation

14

There are certain new standards, amendments and an interpretations to the approved accounting and reporting
standards that will be mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 209,
However, these will not have any significant impact on the fmancial reporting of the Company and, therefore, have not
been disclosed in these financial starements,

Standards, amendments and Interpretations to the published standards that are not yel notified by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan [SECP).

In addition to the above, following standards have been issued by TASE which are yet 1o be notificd by the SECP for

Current

Tax chasge for current taxation is based on axablc income ar the cusrent rates of mxation after taking into account the
applicable tax credits and tax rebates, if any.

Dafarred

Dieferred tax is provided using the balance sheet Bability method for all iemporary diffesences ar the reporting date
berareen tax bases of assets and Babilives and their carrying amounis for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred mx asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses and tax

the purpose of applicability in Pakistan; crodits, if any, to the cxtent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which such temporary
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts differences ard tax Josses,"credits can be utilized, Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts differences.

The company is is process of assessing the impact of these siandards on future finandal statements of the company.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Basis of measuremant

These fnancial statements have been prepared under the histosical cost convention.

3.2 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of finencial statements in conformity with appeoved accounting standards, a5 applicable in Pakistan,
requires the use of certain cotical accounting esti It aleo requires the management to exercige its judgment in the
process of applying the Company's accounting policics. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience, including expectation of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumstances. The arcas where various assumptions and estimates ase significant to the Company's fnancial
statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policics are discussed below:

-determining the recoverable amount, residual values and useful lives of property and equipmens;
determining the useful lives and residual vakses of intangibles assets;

-cabculating the provision for impairment for advances and other receivables;

-disclosure and assessment of provision for contingencies; and

-disclosure and asscssment of post retirement benefits.

3.3 Revenue

Revenue is recognized over the peniod of tme 1o match them with expenses incurred. Grants related to income are
accounted for in accordance with the requirement of 1AS-20 "Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance™ ie. Grants ane recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them with the
related cost which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.

Grants related to assets are recognized in income and expenditure statement over the life of the depreciable assets,

34 Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are mittally recorded at fair values, In subsequent periods, borrowings are stated at amortized
cost using the effective yield method. Financial charges are accounted for on acerual basis and are included in cureent
liabilities 1o the extent of amount remaining unpaid, if any.

4

Deferred tax assets and labiliGes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the assctis
realized or the lability is sertled, based on tax rares that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred rax iz charged or credited o the smtement of profit or boss, except in the case of items credited or
charged to equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is included in equity or statement of other
comprehengive income.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at acquisition cost inclading any costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to the location and condition neocssary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
the management. Donated asscts are recognized at fair values.

Subsequemtly, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost Jess accumulated depreciation and any identifiable
impairment. Subsequent cosis are included in the assets’ camying amounts or recognized a8 @ scparate cost, as
appropriate, only when it is probable thar furure economic benefits associated with the tem will flow w the
organization and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All ather repairs and maintenance cosrs are charged 1o
income and expenditure statement.

Diepreciation is charged to the Income and Expenditure statement on straight line method by applying the depreciation
sates as disclosed in Mofe § so as to write off the depreciable amount of assets over their estimated useful lives.
Depreciation on addittons is charged from the date of such addition or as the case may be, up to the date on which
such aset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed.

An item of propenty, plant and equipment is derccognized upon dispesal or when ne future cconomic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or Joss on de-recognition of asscts (calculated as the difference berween the
net disposal proceed and carrying amount of the asser) is inchsded in the income and expenditure statement in the yeas

the asser is derecognized.
The assets’ residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed at least at each date of sttement of financial position
and impact on depreciation is adjusted, if significant.

3.7 Post retirement benelits

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) covering all eligible employees, payable at
the cessation of employment. Provision is made on the basis of actuaral secommendations. The acrarial valuation is

carried out using the projected unit credit method.
Eligible employess are entitled 1o gransity after completing the preseribed period of service under the scheme equal o
one month gross salary. All remeasurement gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive moome.

3.8 Grants | Donations

Grants received for capital expenditure ase preseated in the statement of financial positon as “Deferred Income™ that
i recognized as mcome in line with depreciation charged on respective asset over the useful life of the asser.

Grants received for revenue expendinere are recognized as grant income as per terms of agreement with donoss/ govi
Donated assets are secognised at fair values of aseetz on date of receipt of donated assets.
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3.9 Trade and other payables 344 Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially stated at fair value of consideration to be paid in the future for goods and
services. Subsequently, these are stated at amortised coat.

3.10 Advances, prepayments and other receivables

These are stated at their nominal valees net of any allowance for uncollectable amounts. Other receivables are
recognized at nominal amount which i fair value of the consideration 1 be received i future.

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. Cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand, demand deposits, other short term highly boguid investments that are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant rsk of changes in value.

3.12 Proviskons

Provisions are recognized when, and oaly when, the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it & probable that an curflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o
sertle the obligation and a relisble estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewsd at
cach date of etatement of financial position and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

3.12 Financial assets

(i

i)

(i)

Amortized cost

Assers that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flow represents solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets, impairment losses,
foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derccognition are recognised directly in profit or loss.
Fair valug through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the coatractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding,

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amonised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income or asscts that
are designated at fair value through profit or loss using fair value option, are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A guin or loss debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which it ariscs.

Equity instrument financial asscts are measured at fair values and subsequent to initial recognition. Changes in fair
values of these financial statements are normally recopnised in profit or loss. Dividends from such investmenrs
continue 1o be recognised in profit or loss when the Company's rght to receive payment is establshed

Financial assets are imitially measured at fair values of the consideration given and reccived respectively, These fmancial
assets are subsequently remeasurcd to fair valucs, amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any guin or loss on the
recognition and de-recogmition of the fimancial assets is included in the profit or loss for the pericd in which it agses.
Financial assets are derecognised when the Company looses contrel of the contractual mights that comprise the
financial assets. Assers or labilines thar are nor contracnal in namre and that are created a5 a result of statutory
W:ﬂhiﬂpﬂﬂ:\dby the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company.

Finaneial Habilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisiens of the
instruments. Finandial kiabilides at amortised cost are mitally measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial
labilities at fair value through profit or loss are initally recognised at fair value and ansaction costs are charged 10
profit or loss.

Financial habdities, other than these at fair valee through profit or loss, are subsequently measured ar amortised cost
using the effective yield methad.

A financial liability is desecognised when the obligation under the bability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an
existing financial liabality is replaced by another from the same lender on substantally different terms, or the terms of
an cxisting liability are substandally modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the secognition of 2 new Bability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts i recognised in
the profit or loss

3.15 Off-setting of financial assets and financlal liabilities

A fnancial asset and a financial lnbility is offset and the net amount is reported in the fnancial statements if the
Company has a legally enforceable dght o set-off the mnsaction and also intends either 1o senle on a net basis or o
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

316 Impairment of assets

Financial assots

The Company asscsses on a forward looking basis the expected credit bosses assoctated with its financial assets. The
Company spplies the simplified spproach to recognise Efetime expected credit losses for its trade debts except due
from government customers.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impaiement on an individual basis, The remaining fnancial assets
are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

The Company recognises in profit or loss, as an mnpairment gain or loss, the amount of expected eredit bosses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the boss allowance at the reporting date,

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assers are assessed ar each reporting date 1o ascertain whether there is any
indication of impatrment. If such an indication exists, the ssset’s recoverable amount is estimated 1o determine the
extent of impairment boss, if any. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the profir or loss. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an assct’s fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascermained through
diseounting of the estimated future cash flows using o discount rate that eeflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risk specific w the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Impairment s reversed if there is a change in the csti used to o ine the recoverable amount. Impairment is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment had been recognized.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT
Oparating fluad . 41 19,690,922 23,051,583
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Total 19,690,922 23,051,663

41 Operating fixed assets

DEFRECLA

BCRIPTION

Fursiture and fdures 5 BEE 144 = EBEE 144 EE2,0oT ESE B4 1,967,611 ATITATY A0

Computar squipmants & E2 240 EE- TP & BEE a8 1,338,718 1,881,454 3,248,11¢ 3738672 EEE S

Loass hoid improvemants Fad- _ T g 004 404 I8, T4 413,899 LEFA DLl 1,281,083 Fi-

Sfice SquRTEEE 1834080 1,804 1,288,074 140,333 19E, 84848 EEER-L ) 1.882.084% 1%

Fliahoe vl s TE0.E90 3420000 11,007,890 LR ) 1A FID 2,008, 884 BTI0E0Z s
(3,544,200 (38442804 [TIn.nE8]

(LI o S T B -R L - 3,130,698 ELLR-F L 313,079 1L ) 3,831,403 n%

Ag ot 30 June, 0 25,838,347 4,488,442 AT AN E0R 3,606,664 4,811,TTH B ARE 447 19,690,922
[3,844,280) (TE8,888)

BEFRECIATION | 5

DE3CRIPFTION

Furniiure and fidures 8,771,383 \ 5,393,157

Cormauinl s3somens 034 5,547.599 3.502 240 591 1,338,214 PR LE AL 4,813,523 333%%
Leass hold improvemassts TIT 1,338 533 2,084 204 21,141 3TR.600 399,742 1.B64, 752 20%
Cffca aquipmarts - 1,834,080 1,034,080 E 140,220 140,220 1,783,860 10%
Mator vehicles - 7801 500 T.801,800 . B59,754 B59,754 6,741,936 20%
Ganaialc’ sgapments - 3030500 3030000 - 286,216 286,226 2,844,473 10%
AgonL 30 Jurs, 2018 031, 883 28,708,305 26, 838 3a7 23 235 3,584 420 3558, 884 23,051 BA3

4.1.1 Depreciation charge for the year has been allccated as folows:

Programme cosl (Operational expenses) -
Administralive expenses 3,564,429

Total 3,564 428

42 Disposal of fixed assets
Detadls of duposals during the year:

H siatinn | Meda of citpeaal

Toyota Cocclla Ll 1822 140 WLE  14ELT2 . [aEr7ty  Bosd o Dt t":"'“‘“ U Coverrmerd of Pusjab  Rslated Party
Toyots Corclla Ll 1,822,140 |LE 14572 . (1,457,718 m"“ﬂ'“x: Decishon under ¢ vormment of Pusjab  Rislatid Party
Total FITTEC] TaB 6k 3,996,424 : [2,916,434]

424 Tite of such vehicles is sull in the name of Company.

4.3 Tite of I donated vehicles amounting to R 3,060,000 is in the name of the Government of Punjab{related party). The Company
i in process of gerting ude of such asses ransferred in name of the Company

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Sciftwans | Development in progress 1,708,553 1,123,553
Total 1,708,563 1,133,563

4

&

10

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Ling tarm sacunty depoats 6.1 1,585,716 1.545.T16
Taotal 1,585,718 1,545,716

64 This amount represents fixed security depesit paid for office building amounting to Rs. 1,275,000, hiring of sceurity guards with
anms amountmg to Rs. 112,500 and fuel secunty amounting 1o Rs. 208,216,

PREPAYMENTS

Prepaid insurance 608,790 307,501
Prepaid genset maintenance 52,200 -
FPrepaid inismet sxpenses 201,069 -
Taltal BE2,069 307,501

2018

Rupeses

ADVAMNCES - unsocured & considered good

Mobilization advancoes

Opening balance 3,787,207 -

Add: Advances extended dunng the year - 5,008,731

Less: Charged ko income and expandiure sistament [3.757,287) {1,252 434)
- 3,757.297

Advances 10 employees 8.1 1,468,521 168 661

Total 1,468,521 3,955,958

81 This inchades advance extended 1o Ms. Amna Aksheed (related pary) amounting be Ra, 846,155 (2018 N,

219

Rupees

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks

Cumend account - Bank of Punjab (related party) 169,483,914 69,806,045
Taotal 169,483,914 69,808,045
Total 159,483,914 65,808,045

2019

Rupoos

DEFERRED GRAMNTS - RESTRICTED FUNDS

Graris related 1o income 0.1 185,387,308 85,773,860
Grants related 1o assets 10.2 3,080,000 -
Closing balance 168,457,308 85,773,850
101 Grants related to Income

Opening balance 85,773,580 169,121,481
Grants received from Govt of the Punjab - related party 10.1.2 113,000,000 -
Less: Grant income amonised durng the yaar (143.376,552) {103,347 821)
Closing balance 155,357,308 85,773,860

10.1.2 Dusng the year 2018-19, the Government of the Punjab had extended grant of Rs. 213,000,000
10.2  Grants related to asssts

Opening balance -

Grants received during tha year (2 vahices received) 3,400,000

Less: Grand income amonised dufing the year {340,000

Closing balance 3,060,000 -

@
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11 DEFERRED LIABILITY
Gratuity 6,811,453 4,345,000

(A Company set up under section 42 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984) - now
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Tatal

6,811,453 4,345,000

114

1.2

As stated in note 3.7, the Company operates a gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees subject to attanment of minimam
service of prescrbeod penod. Latest sctuarial valuation of the scheme was casrded out as at June 30, 2010,

The actuarial valuation of granity plan was carnied oot as at June 30, 2009, The projected umt ercdit method using the following
signuficant assumptions was wed for thas valuaton:

- Discount rate - per annum compound
- Expected rate of increase in salanies - per annum

For next year 12.25%
For subsequent years 13.25%
11,3  Mortality rate
“The rates assumed were based on the SLIC (2001-2005) mortabity able.
114  Statement of Financial Position
Present value of defined benefl obligation 6,811,453 4,345,000
Faiir value of plan assels - =
115 6811453 4,345,000
115 Movemaent in net llabllity recognized
Dpeneg nat kabikty 4,345,000 -
Currem service cost 4,557 50 4,345,000
Fast service cost 310,428
Imisres1 cost on defined benef obigation 354,804 -
Aciuarial ;remeasuremenis - OCI [1,325,788) -
Benefits paid during the year [1.430,7T0) -
Closing el lability 8,811,453 4,345,000
116 Exponss charged to income and expenditures statemant
Cumreni servico cosl 4,557 4 4,345,000
Fast service cost 30426 -
Imterest cost on defined beneft oblgation 354,504 -
Experse chitpeabls 1o ncome and expendiure siatement 521,00 4,345,000
11,7  Total Remeasuremants Chargeabie in Other Comprehensive Income
Aciuadial (gains)iosses from changes in demographic assumpions -
Actuanial losses from changes in financial assumpions 117,689
Experence adjustments [1,443,397)|
Tedal remeasuremeonts chargeabls in othar comprahensive incoma [1,326,798)
1.8  Changos in Mot Liability
Liability as on 01 July 4,345,000 -
Expense chaigeabls 1o income and expandilure sislement 5,223,021 4,345,000
Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensiva income [1.325,7938) -
Benefils paid [1,430,7T0) -
Liability as on 30 Juna 6,811,453 4,345,000
12 TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES
Crodifors 11 1,552,464 4,306,095
Accrued iabilties 16,788,708 5,501,548
Cloging balance 18341173 9,797 843

124

G

“This includes an amount of Rs.197,434(2018: Nil) payable 1o DG PR Punjab Gort (redated party).

13

14

15

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

139 During last rear, certain petitioners of eivil society filed 1 petition in the Lahore High Court against legal incorporation of the
Company alongwith ather companies operating in Punjab u/s 42 of the Companics Ordimance, 1984, The maner is pending for
sdjudication before the Honorsble Lahore High Court, Lahore. The management of the company = of the view thar such
petition would be disrmissed and accordingly, there is no impact on going concem status of the Company.

132 Commitments &s on reporting date amounts to Mil (2018:Rs, 585,000,

PROGRAM EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 144 20120473 22 545,023
Program suppor (implementing Pasrtners) 43,405,348 7,305,821
Event dissermination - 4,837,621
Surveys (Monitoring and Evaluation) 060,000 2,436,000
Advarisement 1,671,350 1,667,328
Maowtings and workshops 53,144 486,521
Prinfing and stalorerny 373,364 45,845
Traveling and comveyancs 2,184,313 1.577.037
Digital print madia 162,265 ZT0.TEl
Community oulreach - 44,000
Pringing of annual neports & quariedy newsletiers 84,870 108,423
Third party monicring 8,702,571 887,500
Lhtiies 522,873 -
Rant 2,846,472

Postage and telephone 486, 38T -
Communication 382,574 .
Entertainmend 288,378 -
Repair and mainienance 195,201 .
Secury 783,000 -
Insurance 534,430 =
Legal and professional 1,838,288 -
Depreciation 4.1.1 2,443 678 -
Tolal 95,039,794 42 830

4.1 This includes gratuity amo

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Solaries & bensits 16.2 32,604,113 39,891,181
Printing & staticnery 13802 565,617
Fepair £ maintenance 185201 M1.T13
Traveling & conveyance 827,584 1,456,232
Legal & professional 2,919,288 2A76,290
[T 822,873 890,548
Communication BED,BE1 233318
Font, ries & (axes 2,848,472 sasedrz
Entartsinenent 206,607 1,163,443
Adverisemant 4,102 1.286,534
Audior's remuneration 181 30,400 200,000
Insuranca 534,430 445 630
Security 783,000 1371,288
Cepreciation 414 2,468,104 1.564.429
Total 35,754,708 B0,986,040_
151 Audiors remuneration

Audh fes 181,400 173,250

Ofher cerificalions 0.000 26,750
Total 220,400 200.000

15.2  This includes gratulty amaounting 1o Rs.2 478,852 (2018:2.900,000).

4
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16 OTHER EXPENSES
Loss on dispesal of fooed assels 1015424
Total 2,015,424
161 This repressnts losa on diaposal of vehicles made during the year (Mobe 4,2),

17 TAXATION

Prowision for income taxation (curment as well as deferred) has not been made during the year a3 the Company 35 2 not for profit
crganization as defined under section 2{36) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and & entithed For tax eredit under seeton 100C.

18 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, EXECUTIVES AND DIRECTORS

The directors of the company except Chief Executive Officer are not charging any remuneration of benefits from the Company
Benefits of the Chief Exccutive Officer and the Executives are a5 follows:

Salaries 2,100,000 17,806,940

Graluity 201,923 1,782,308
Reimbursement of medical expenses 128,000 261,620
Reimbursement of mobile bils 120,000 113,283
Total 2,546,923 20,004,151 -
Number of persons 1 3
2018
CEQ : Fepcutives Cithar I:]:n:-'.lr:;r._.
Eenefits iRelated | I
— : [Raeda ':F'n.-l.m::'n:drl:lr.'*.-l
Rs | i

Salary i.‘.r'll:l,,-lh 23,184.8T1 =
Gratulty 1,000,000 1,400,000 -
Reimbursement of medical expenses 125,000 283,179 -
Reimbursament of mobile bil 120,000 134,750 -
Total 9,855 484 25,002,800
Numbar of parsons 1 4

18,1 The Exccutives and CEO have alio been provided with cfficial mobde phones while CEQ & abso provided with a Company’s

maintained 1300 CC car with a fucl Emat of 350 livers per month.
19 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the followmg nsks from its wse of lnandal instraments:

- Credit nak

- Liquidsty risk

- Market Risk

The Board of Directors has overall respongbility for the sstblshment and oversight of the Company's misk management framework.

The Board is ako responsible for developang and monitorng the Company’s sk management policies.

181 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
Credit risk meprosents the accounting loss that would be recograzed at the reporteng date if counter parties Ful completely 1o
perform as contracted.
Credit fisk arees principally from long term deposits, advances and bank balmoes. Out of total financial assers of Re 162,548,151
(2018: Rs, 75,307,719, the fnancial assets that are subject to credit ek amounted to Re 162,548,151 (2018: Re. 75,307,719).
The eredit ik on Byuid funds is limited because the counter pasty is bank with reasonably high credit ratings.
The Company monitors the eredit quality of the financial assets with reference to the historical performance of such assers and
available external eredit ratings.
The credit quality of major financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be ascetsed by reference 1o external credin
matngs (if avaalable) or to hstoncal information about count default rate:

Short term rating Longterm rating Agency 2018

The Bank of Punjab- related party Al+ AR PACRA 159,483,914 69805,045

Total

e
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192 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able 1o meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's

approach o managing liquidity 35 to ensure & far as possible to always have sufficient Liquidity to meet its liablities when due. The
Company's spproach to managing Bquidity is to ensuse, 25 far as possible, that it will always have sufficient Equadity to meet its
cbligations when due, under both nommal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or rking damage 1D the
Company's reputation. The Company uses different methods which assists it in menitormg eash flow requirements. Typically the
Company ensures that it has sufficient cath on demand 1o meet expocted operational expenses for o reasomable penod, including
the servicing of financial oblygation. The company = not eposed to any sigraficant lqusdity nsk.

The following are contractual maruritics of financial kabilities o at 30 June 201%

T & S0 SR i e O A0 B4 AT _— - AW AT
Tonal A0 AN AT - AW 244,973

.:"7?1"" mavil U e R . B, 7O7 843 - 2. 7a7 843
Twisi B, 707 840 - 2. 7Fa7 843

193 Market risk

Market risk i the rigk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest/mark-up rates and equity prices will
effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instromens.

{i) Curroncy risk
Currency risk is the risk thae the fair value or famre exsh flows of a financial instrement will fluctuate becanse of changes in
foresign exchange mtes. Currency risk arises mainly from future commereial transactions of reccivables and payables that exst due
10 IranEIChons in forcign curmencics.
The Company is not exposed to any currency risk.

(i) Interestmark-up rate risk
Interest/ rarkup rate sk represents the ask that the fasr vabue or future cash fows of a Gnancial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest/mark-up rater. The company = not exposed to any interest rate rik

[iil) Equity price risk
The entity & not expesed 1o any equity price risk.
19,4 Financial instruments by calegories

Financlal assots

Leng ferm depoaits 1,305,716 1,595,716
Achances 1,468,521 1,468,521
Cash and bank balances 199,485,014 150,483,914
Toul 161,548,151 IG2548.151

Availahle
fi

Cash & vash equivalents

Long kewm deposits

1,545,716

Adances - 3055058
Cash and bank balances 19 B06 D45 - 39,806,043
‘Tatal & 806 45 = SS0LET 75307, 719

4
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18,8 Capital risk managemant
The Company i regietered under soction 42 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 having no share capital Therefore, the Comparny
has no capital nzk.

20  TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

Fimamcial liabilities st

Amaortised cou Related partics comprise associated endertakings, Government of Punjab, depantments of Governmment of Punjab, companies where
Trade and other payaliles 1B.MLITS 9745 directors abo hold interest, diroctors and key management personnc] including CEO. Transactions with related partics other than
Tatal 18,341,173 9,797 643 discloscd clsewherc is these financial statements are as follows:

18.5  Fairvalues of financial assets and labilities ! 2019 018

prama o Nature of transaction

Fair value is the amount that would be received on sale of an astet or pasd on transfer of a bability in an oederly transaction relationship Rupoes Rupees
berween market participants at the mesurernent dare. Consequently, differences can arise berween carrying values and fair value
estimates, Underdying the definitton of fair value i the presumption that the Company i a going concemn without any intention The Bank of Punjab Government of Bank charges 6,539 381
requirement 1o curtail materially the scale of its operations or 1o undertake 3 transaction on adverse terms. ::"'-'” cramed
IFRS 13, Fair value Measurements' roquares the Company to classify far value mcasurernents uang fur valee hicrarchy that Divsciorate General Publc R s D el of . e 2 015471 2 064,262
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hieraschy has the following kevels: Government  of
Level 1: queted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical sssets or kabalities; Furiab
Level 2 inputs other than quoted poces mcluded withan Level 1 that are observable for the assets or lability, either darectly (e as Fey management personnel Employment Loan disbursed 3,662,728 500,000
prices) or indirectly (e denved from prices); and Loan necovered 2,716,510 500,000
Lewvel 3 I.!'II'.!I.'II! fior the ascets nr]hh.l'lir}' that are not h‘lﬂ:ﬂ on l.‘ll"l;‘!\'!l‘lk.l'lﬂltﬂ data {‘.I!".'Ihﬂ‘!\':lhlﬂ inpasts). . . . — B ol of icles isposed off 280
The following table show the carrymg amounts and Ffar valees of fnancial assets acconding to there sespective category, including Departmant {Govi. of Punjab) Government of \ighiches purchased (grant 3,400,000
thexr bevels m the fair value hicranchy for Enancial instruments measured at Far vahue. It docs not inchude fair value miormation Punjal received)

for financesl assets not measured at fair value if the carrying emount s seasonable apprccamation of fair value

018

Rupeas

21  NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees at the year end 24 28

Jura 10,2018 {Rupees ) [Fupees)]  (Rupess)  (Rupees) [Fuapees | (Rupses) (Rupess] [ Rupsss ) Average number of employees dunng the year 24 £
R ial asssts not | 1 GEMERAL
Rl - 221 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

oo - — 1506718 222  Correspondmg fgures have been searmnged and/ or redassbed, wherever considered nceessary, for the purpose of better
Long . Yoo ! ) presentation of the financial saements. No sgnificant reclassficatons have been made in these fnancial staterments.
Adanest 1488521 i . 1 AR50 ; : . . 23 AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cash and bank balances 160,483,814 = = 158,483,814 = - - - These financial statements were authorized for issuc on 01 lq_' lolo by the Board of Dircctoes of the Company.
Total 162,848,181 - 162,848,181 . - = = qlax

Anarcisl iabdtieg mestured af amortined cout
Cumrent labiitios

Trade ard ol payables 18,341,173 . 18,341,173 . . B . 0 -
- -
Total 18241173 - 18,341,473 - - & >,
Firancisdwt sets ot meanis o ot fair whon - = AN §
Nercummanes - .
Lang term secuiy depasin . 1845716 . 145716 . 5 . . CHIEF EXEC OFFICER DIRECTOR
Ciartent antoty
At - LA . 1
Cashand bani balances 53,805,045 - . GA.805 045
Totd BLMEME L0 - XTI
Franca lakites nessasd ot amortasd sl
Currornt kabdiies
Tinde B Ber papalieg = = AT A ST ER
Total . . WA LWE
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Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 'Statement
of Compliance' does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with
the best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,

Review Report to the Members
2019.

On Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)
Rules, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Punjab Population Innovation Fund - A Company setup under section 42 of the

Companies Ordinance, 1984 [repealed] (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2019. Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner: Imran Afzal

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Lahore

Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,

whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the Dated:
provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and

review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Rules requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related
party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and
recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and
have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not
carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at
arm's length price or not.

A




SCHEDULE | E The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a 3(5) M
= director on more than five public sector companies and listed
[See paragraph 2(1)] companies simultaneously, except their subsidiaries.
Statement of Compliance with the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 The appointing authorities have applied the it and proper criteria 3(7) ¥
Name of company: Punjab Population Innovation Fund glven in the Anpexure to the Rules in making nominations of the
i fa persons for election as Board members under the provisions of the
Act.
Name of the line ministry: Population Welfare Department - Population
5. The chairman of the Board is working separately from the chief a(1) Y
For the year ended: June 30, 2019 executive of the Company,

L This statement presents the overview of the compliance dwith the Public Sector 5. The chairman has been elected by the Board of directors except a{a) v
Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (hereinafter called "the Rules”) issued for the purpose where Chairman of the Board has been appointed by the Government .
of estlabuminighau:rahlzewum :_'f guc;d E;?EF"‘“:;E* whereby a public sector company is managed in 7. The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the chief 5(2) b
eompliance with the tass practices o public sector govermance. executive on the basis of the fit and proper criteria as well as the

Il The company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner guidelines ffied by the Commission.
5.No. | Provision of the Rules Ruleno. [ ¥ | N {Not applicable where the chief executive has been nominated by the

Tich the redevant box
Gove
The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, as Y fment)
1 defined under the Rules. 2{d)
e :;-:;uarﬂ: aee lea::;;“; 't:::’lrﬂ lt; ::ral MECRSEAS TOCRCi 32) B 8. {a) The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct” to ensure that 5{4) N gl
ors. At preser g E Date of professional standards and corporate values are in place.
(v
Category Name Join
i (b} The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
Dr. ljaz Nabi 07-11-2016 disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting
ol Dr. Yasmeen Qazi 28-01-2018 policies and procedures, including posting the same on the company’s
5 . Resigned on website.
gg Mr. Salim Ghauri 29.05-2019 {Addrass of website to be indicated “www.ppif.org.ph”)
=3
L] Prot. Dr. 07-11-2016 { B 5 e
Muhammad Tayyab (¢} The Board hassetin p quate systems and controls for the
Dr. Navead Hamid 07-11-2018 | identification and redressal of grievances arising from unethical
Executive | Mr Jawad Ahmed practices.
Director Qureshi (CED, 08-05-2017 9, The Board has established a system of sound internal control, to 5(5) Y
PPIF) ensure compliance with the fundamental principles of probity and
Member Health, propriety; objectivity, integrity and honesty; and relationship with the
=z E:g::;:gﬂﬁ P&D 18-08-2016 stakeholders, in the manner prescribed in the Rules.
8 Board : 10, The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict of S(5)(B){i) b
' Secrel interest policy to lay down circumstances or considerations when a
EI Ly FinSnos aln i person may be deemed to have actual or potential conflict of
% Sacrelary PWD 19-08-2016 interests, and the procedure for disclosing such interest.
S
o maﬁm!ﬁh 18-08-2016 i1, The Board has developed and implemented a policy on anti- s(5Mb) Y
3 Eﬁun:linn corruption to minimize actual or percelved corruption in the {vi)
§ S ry Primary & company.
Secondary Health 19-08-2016 : =
Care 12 The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open 5(5Nc) ¥
and falr procedures for making appointments and for determining (i)
terms and conditions of service.
0T 13, The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the 5{5)(c) Y
company’s internal rules and procedures relating to public (1)
procurement, tender regulations, and purchasing and technical
standards, when dealing with suppliers of goods and services.

A




14.

The Board has developed a vision or mission statement and corporate
strategy of the company.

5(6)

15.

The Board has developed significant policies of the company. A
complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended, has been
maintained.

5(7)

16.

The Board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of any
service delivered or goods sold by the Company as a public service
obligation, and has submitted its request for appropriate
compensation to the Government for consideration.

5(8)

N/A

17.

The Board has ensured compliance with policy directions
requirements received from the Government.

5(11)

18

{a)  The Board has met at least four times during the year,

{b)  Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda
and working papers, were circulated at least seven days
before the meetings.

{c)  The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded
and circulated.

6(1)
6(2)

6(3)

23,

the Rules,

{b) The committees were provided with written term of reference
defining their duties, authority and compaosition.

{c} The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to
all the Board members.

{d) The committees were chaired by the following non-executive
directors:

Number of Name of Chair
Members

2 + 1 Vacant

All Board
Members

2+ | Vacant  |Dr. Muhammad Tayyab

Committee

Audit Committes Maved Hamid

Risk Management &
Investigation
Committes

Human Resources
Committee

Chairman

Technical & 443 Vacant Dr. Yasmeen Qazi

Procurement

- =

The Board has monitored and assessed the performance of senior
management on annual/half-yearly/quarterly basis*® and held them
accountable for accomplishing objectives, goals and key performance
indicators set for this purpose.

2 Strike gut whichever is not applicable

8(2)

24.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor, by whatever name
called, with their remuneration and terms and conditions of

employment.

13

20,

The Board has reviewed and approved the related party transactions
placed before it after recommendations of the audit committee. A
party wise record of transactions entered into with the related parties
during the year has been maintained.

25.

The Chief Financial Officer and the_lffompanv Secretary have requisite
gualification prescribed in the Rules.

21,

{a) The Board has approved the profit and loss account for, and
balance sheet as at the end of, the first, second and third quarter of
the yvear as well as the financial year end.

(B]The Board has placed the annual financial statements on the
company’s website.

10

26.

The company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards
notified by the Commission in terms of sub-section (1) of section 225

of the Act.

27.

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance
with the reguirements of the Act and the Rules and fully describes the
salient matters required to be disclosed.

17

22,

All the Board members underwent an orientation course arranged by
the company to apprise them of the material developments and
information as specified in the Rules.

11

The directors, CEQ and executives, or their relatives, are not, directly
or indirectly, concerned or interested in any contract or arrangement
entered into by or on behalf of the company except those disclosed to
the company.

18

N/A
(Mo Share
Capital)

k Licé

29,

{a) A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration
packages of individual directors have been set in place and no director
is Involved in deciding his own remuneration.

{b) The annual report of the company contains criteria and details of
remuneration of each director.

N/A

30.

The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by the
chief executive and chief financial officer before consideration and
approval of the audit committee and the Board.

e




31. The Board has formed an audit committee, with defined and written

terms of reference, and having the following members; 21{1) Y
and
Name of | Category Professional 21(2)
e e background
Dr. Naveed Chair
: Econamist
Al repcrent SCHEDULE Il
Member Secretary. Primary &
Non- . Secondary Health See Paragraph 2(3)
Executive Cara
The chief executive and chai f the Board are not members of ¥
the :wldit :ommittee e Explanation for Non-Compliance with the
32, {a) The chief financial officer, the chief internal auditor, and a 21(3) Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013
representative of the external auditors attended all meetings of the N

audit committee at which issues relating to accounts and audit were We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with [except
discussed. for the following, toward which reasonable progress is being made by the company to seek compliance by
the end of next accounting year 30-06-2020.

{b) The audit committee met the external auditors, at least once a
year, without the presence of the chief financial officer, the chief Y
internal auditor and other executives.

[c) The audit committee met the chief internal auditor and other

members of the internal audit function, at least once a year, without N
I the presence of chief financial officer and the external auditors.
33 {a) The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, which 22 X
has an audit charter, duly approved by the audit committee.
(b} The chief internal auditor has requisite qualification and N
experience prescribed in the Rules.
(e} The internal audit reports have been provided to the external Y
auditors for their review,
34, [The external auditors of the company have confirmed that the firm 23(4) Y
and all its partners are in comgpliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as applicable in
Pakistan.
35. The auditors have confirmed that they have observed applicable 23(5) XY
guidelines issued by IFAC with regard to provision of non-audit
SEervices.
— e ———
M- /____.—-'
o = s o
¥ P O q‘ CO
— Signatures
— (Names in block letters)
CEO & an/Independent Director

(mfﬁr%ﬂu Queesus) (!)/\flw ; [g\

Pv. Nwed MHeara'd
Dvactoy.

::_ H;‘[:“n:b' . Reasons for non-compliance Fulure course of action
For ex-officio board members
In case of Secretary Finance, it is not
possible to comply with the rule 3(5) of a follow up, vide letter
PSC rules 2013, because he is the board numbers 287, 288, 313 & 314
mamber in almost all the Public Sector ed March 25, 2019 & Apnl
1 Companies. 25, 2019. PPIF requested Sec
39) | PSHD and Sec SSHMED to
In case of Secretary PSHD and Secretary provide information on their
SSHMED, request has already been directorship in other companies
made sevaral times o provide information
on their directorship in other companies,
still no information received so far.
The Board shall mesat al least four times
during the year but due to unavailability of | PPIF will ensure to hold board
2 6(1) members and not mesting guorum | meetings in compliance with
requirements, the Board meetings were | the rules in the future.
delayed beyond required time.
All the board members shall undergo
with an orientation course to apprise
them of the malenal developments and All the direct will be
5 11 information.  Furthermore, orientation requested o S
course shall be amanged for directors to sl b
acquaint about the wider scope of CERERES .
responsibilities in conceming the use of
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PPIF is partialty compliant. Board has | ClA was nol recruited due lo . . a Ldnter d
13,21(3) approved ap;ghmm of CFO & | the ban on the recruitment, An instinct for growth Aot e R
{aBc), | Company Secrstary, The wvacancy of | However internal audit firm Panistan.
6 22(b&c) | Chiaf Internal Auditor was advertised but | M/S BDO Ebrahim & CO met T +82 42 37423 621-23, 37422 987
due prohibition from Government via its | with Audit & Finance BAS-503-19 F 432 42 57425 485
notification, no hiring could be made | Committee with and without November 19, 2019 weww gtoiak, com
during the year. presence of CFO.

The Board of Direciors
Punjab Population Innovavon Fund
125-Abu Bakar Block;

il < New Garden Town,
-~ lahore.
[Mames in block |
CEO & Chairman/indepe arﬁm“\ Lq Honorable Members of the Board:
road AMved Ruiesm © DR.Naved [y AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUNJAB POPULATION INNOVATION Funp
(QM‘_‘ Ereisioos) (b-'rﬂ-‘r") PAKISTAN FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

We are pleased 1o enclose the draft finaneial starements of Panjab Population Tanovation Fund
{the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2009 prepared by management together with deafi
auditor’s report theteon, These financial statements have been inialed by us for the purpose of
identification anly.

May we spprse the Board of Directors (the Board) thar unul the suditors have sipned their
report on the financial statements; such financial statements will renain and be deemed

unandited.

We shall be pleased to sign the audit report as well as review report on Smtement of compliance
with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 in the present or
modified torm after the Board has considered the maters raised i this lewter and approved the
financual statements i their present or modified form and we have received the following:

) the financial statements, with or withour adjustments, approved by the Board and signed
by the Chief Executive Officer and Director duly authorized m this behalf;

bj signed copy of minutes of the meeting of the Board in which the financial statements are
appraved;

<) signed  Dhirector’s report alongwith Statement of Compliance of Code of Corporare
Governance;

d) representation letter signed by the Chief Exccutive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company;

€ specific approval regrirding items in paragraph 2 below; and

f) cutstanding information stated in “Anpexure -A™.
i
Chartered Accountants

Mumber of Grant Thormton international Lid
Offices in Mornchi & islamabed
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1. Responsibilities of the Auditors and the Board of Directors in relation to the

financial statements

The responsibilities of the independent auditars in a usual examination of the financial statements
are explained in the Companies Act, 2017 and International Standards on Auditing. While the
auditors are responsible for forming and expressing their opinion on the financial statements, the
responsibility for their preparation is primarily that of the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Board’s responsibilities include the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal
controls, the selection and application of accounting policies and safeguarding of the assets of the
Company. The audit of the financial stitements does not relieve the Board of its responsibilities,
Accordingly, our examination of the books of account and records should not be relied upen 1o
disclose all the errors or irregularities, in relanon w the finandal satements,

The inclusion, publication, or reproduction by the Company of our reports documents
containing informaton in addition 1o the financial sttements and our report thereon may require
us to perform additional procedures to fulfill our professional responsibilities. The management
shall provide such additional information for our review. Our responsibility for other information
i documents containing the Company’s audited financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon (for example, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations) does not extend beyond the financial information identified in our repart, and we
have no obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate such other information contained in
these documents. However, in accordance with 184 720, we have to seview/read the other
information and consider whether such information, or the manner of its presenmion, was
muterially inconsistent with information appearing in the financial statements. Our responsibility
also includes calling o management’s attention any information that we believe 15 a material
misstatement of fact.

The Company may wish o place its financial statements and auditors” report on its website. Itis
responsibility of the management to ensurc that any such placement properly presents the
financial informanon and the auditors’ report. The management of the Company would advise us
of any intended electronic placement before it oceurs, We reserve the night w wathhold consent 10
the electronic placement of the report if the audited finandal statements or the auditors” report are
to be placed in an inappropriate manner. Management is responsible for the controls and security
with regard to the website. Review of controls over the maintenance and integrity of the
Company's website does not fall within the scope of the sudit of the financial statements.

L

3.

3.3

3.4
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Specific approvals

Before issuing our report, we request the Board to consider and specifically approve the following:
additions in operating fixed assets and intngible assets dunng the year;

transactions with related parties (Note-20); and

adoption of new standards and SRO 733/2018 (the Association with Charitable and Not for Profit
Object Regulations 2018),

Matters for specific attention of the Board
We would like to draw attention of the Board to following matters:

Last year, certain petinoners of Civil Society had filed a pettion in the Honorable Lahore Hligh
Court against incorporation of the Company along with certain other companies incorporated u/'s
42 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 which are operating in Punjab. Currenty, proceedings of
the Honomble Court are in process. The management is of the view that such petition would be
dismissed and accordingly, there would be no impact on going concern status of the Company.

We trust that the Board is in agreement with the views of management of the Company.

During the year, Company has transferred two of its vehicles to Govt. of Punjab in exchange for
two vehicles of the same category. The Company was required to derecognize the old vehicles and
recognize the vehicles received in exchange. However, no recognition / derecognition hus been
made in these financial statements in respect of vehicles exchange. In this regard management of
the Company has apprised us that there is no need ro incorporate any adjustment in these financial
statements.,

We recommend that necessary adjusuments should be made in the books of accounts of the
Company.

We have noticed that Forms 29 of Mr. Salim Ghauri has not been filed with SECP on timely basis.
Such practice may result into imposition of level 1 penalty (may extend to Rs. 500 per day during
which default contmucs with maximum lmit of Rs. 25,000),

Appropuiate steps should be taken to ensure compliance of all applicable laws.
The Company is keeping its surplus funds in Current Account rather than Saving Account.

We suggest that the management is advised for framing an investment policy for investung surplus
funds in order to fetch suitable return on available surplus fonds,

We have reported certain non-compliances with Code of Corporate Governance (LCG) in our
review report on statement of compliance with best practices of CCG, which are mentoned in
Annexure B. Such practice may result into imposition of penalties.

We request that the management is advised to ensure compliance of the Cade.
G
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3.6 As per employee service mles of PPIF, GM Operations and HR Manager will jountly conduct

Ta

8.

interviews for various posts. However, GM Operations, Mr. Haroon Ahmad Shabbir, has resigned
during the year and such posiion has not been filled at reporung date.

We recornmend that the vacant position should be filled as per requirement of employee service
riles.

Fraud & Error

We have been informed by the management that no ease of fraud and error has been brought to
their knowledge which would have occurred duning the year and which could have material effects
on these financial statements,

Related Party Transactions
We have been informed by the management that there have been no transactions with the related
parties during the year other than thar disclosed in note 20 to the annexed financial statements.

Contingencies & Commitments

We have been informed by the management that there were no contingencies and commitments
as on reporing date except those disclosed in note M o the annexed financial statements.

Management Letter
A management letter highlighting weaknesses in the internal control systems which have come (o

our knowledge will be forwanded to the management in due course time.

We take the opportunity 1o express pur appreciation of the courtesy and co-operition extended to
us during the course of audir by the smif and management of the Company.

Engagement Quality Control Review
The engagement quality control review of draft financial statements and other relevant working
papers, which is required to be camried out by professional standards, is currently in progress. We

expect 1o complete this process over the next few days and will communicate to you significant
issues, 1f any, highlighted dunng the review.

Yours ruly

Chartered Accountants

IL

“Annesure- A”
OUTSTANDING INFORMATION

Minutes of 11% BOD Mecting

Performance Evaluations of BOD

L.
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“Annexure- B"

NON-COMPLIANCES - CCG

Sr. Provisions of the Rules [Rule #
MNo

1. [Some directors have not confirmed that none of them is serving as a director| 3(3)
more than five public sector companies and listed companies
imultancously, except their subsidiaries,
The Board has not met four times during the year. 6(1)
1 All Board members have not anended orentation course o apprise them of] 11
the matesial developments and information as specified in the Rules,
6  [The Board has not approved appomtment of Chief Internal Auditor, by| 13
whatever name called, with their remuneration and terms and conditions of

employment.
8 | The chicfinternal auditor, and a cepresentative of the external auditors |21 (3) (a

didd not attend all meetings of the audit commitiee at which issues relating 10 & ¢)
aceounts and audit were discussed.

(=]

fe) The audit commirtee did not meet the chicl internal auditor and other
members of the internal audir funcoon, at least once a year, without the
resence of chief financial officer and the external auditoss.

= : . ) &
9 |(b) The chief intemnal auditor has not been appointed. e)

7 -




